Administrative Procedures Guide





STATE OF ALABAMA STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD

Local Government Health Insurance Plan

201 South Union Street, Suite 200 PO Box 304900 Montgomery, Alabama 36130-4900 (334) 263.8326 ● 1 (866) 836.9137 Fax (334) 517.9778 www.alseib.org October 3, 2011 Joe N. Dickson Chairman

William L. Ashmore Chief Executive Officer

MEMORANDUM

TO: ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNITS

FROM: William L. Ashmore

Chief Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Local Government Health Insurance Program

The State Employees' Insurance Board is pleased to provide the Local Government Health Insurance Program (LGHIP). Legislative Act 92-303 established LGHIP to provide affordable group health insurance coverage for employees of local government units, certain organizations, and associations. The LGHIP is a self-insured group health insurance program funded from the premiums of the participating local government units and their subscribers.

The first part of this guide contains application instructions for new groups to enroll in the Local Government Program and criteria for establishing eligibility. Also enclosed are summaries of benefits, premiums, enrollment forms, and explanations of billing procedures. Please read and follow all instructions carefully.

We welcome this opportunity to offer you the Local Government Health Insurance Program and trust this program will provide the health insurance coverage to meet your needs. If you have any questions or if we can be of further service, please contact a member of the Local Government staff at 334.263.8326 or 1.866.836.9137.

WLA/ss

Local Government

Health Insurance Program Guide

Effective: January 1, 2012

Administered By:

State Employees' Insurance Board Post Office Box 304900 Montgomery, Alabama 36130-4900 Phone: 334.263.8326

> Toll-Free: 1.866.836.9137 Fax: 334.517.9778 Website: www.alseib.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| I. | GROUP APPLICATION AND ENROLLMENT | 9 |
|-------|--------------------------------------|------|
| II. | SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PLANS | 10 |
| III. | PREMIUMS | . 10 |
| IV. | INSTRUCTIONS FOR APPLICATION PACKAGE | 21 |
| V. | ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT RULES | . 29 |
| VI. | RETIREMENT | . 37 |
| VII. | TERMINATION OF SERVICE | 39 |
| VIII. | BILLING PROCEDURES | . 45 |
| IX. | FORMS | . 46 |
| X. | APPENDIX | 49 |
| XI. | SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY PLAN | |
| XII. | SOUTHLAND APPENDIX | |

I. GROUP APPLICATION AND ENROLLMENT

A. Code of Alabama 1975, Section 36-29-14

Any agency of the state, or any governmental entity, body, or subdivision thereto, any county, any municipality, any municipal foundation, any fire or water district, or authority, or cooperative, any regional planning and development commission established pursuant to Sections 11-85-50 through 11-85-73, that is not and was not for the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of application to participate in any plan created pursuant to the provisions of this article a member of an existing government sponsored health insurance program, formed under the provisions of Section 11-26-2, the Association of County Commissions of Alabama or the Alabama League of Municipalities, the Alabama Retired State Employees' Association, the Alabama State Employees Credit Union, Easter Seals Alabama, Alabama State University, or the Alabama Rural Water Association, Rainbow Omega, Incorporated, The Arc of Alabama, Incorporated, and any of the affiliated local chapters of The Arc of Alabama, Incorporated, any railroad authority organized pursuant to Chapter 13, Title 37, or any solid waste disposal authority organized pursuant to Chapter 89A, Title 11 may, by resolution legally adopt to conform to rules prescribed by the State Employees' Insurance Board, may elect to have its officers, members, employees, and retired employees become eligible for health insurance coverage under the State Employees' Insurance Board without any liability to the state or the State Employees' Health Insurance Plan.

Acceptance of the employees identified above shall be optional with the State Employees' Insurance Board.

Employees, officers and retirees who are eligible for health insurance pursuant to this section shall be entitled to coverage and benefits as designated by the State Employees' Insurance Board.

Any portion of the cost of the insurance coverage as determined by the State Employees' Insurance Board for the employees, officers and retirees and their dependents pursuant to this section may be paid by the employer.

The chief fiscal officer of each employer shall remit to the State Employees' Insurance Board the amount of premiums required for employee and dependent coverage under this section. The employer shall furnish the necessary information to the State Employees' Insurance Board.

The agreement of any employer to have its employees, officer and retirees to be covered under the health insurance plan provided by the State Employees' Insurance Board may be revoked only by complying with the following provisions:

The employer, by resolution of the governing body, shall signify its intention and desire to withdraw from such plan in writing and by delivering a copy of such resolution by certified mail to the State Employees' Insurance Board no later than six months prior to the effective date of withdrawal. Any employer that withdraws from participation in such plan shall be responsible for paying its claims incurred prior to the date of withdrawal, but not

reported and paid prior to the date of withdrawal. The withdrawing employer shall also be liable for interest which will accrue at a rate of 1.5 percent per month on any monies due to the State Employees' Insurance Board which are over 30 days past due. Any organization that provides or administers health insurance benefits through the Local Government Health Insurance Program shall not provide or administer health insurance benefits to any entity which withdraws from the Local Government Health Insurance Program for a period of two years from the effective date of withdrawal. Any group that withdraws from participation shall serve a three-year waiting period from the effective date of the group's termination before such group (in good standing) may apply for reenrollment into the Program.

The State Employees' Insurance Board shall promulgate such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the effective administration of the provisions of this section. (Title 36, Chapter 29, *Code of Alabama 1975*, as amended). The SEIB shall have absolute discretion and authority to interpret the terms of the plan and reserves the right to change the terms and/or end the plan at any time and for any reason.

B. Group Enrollment

The governing body of any local government unit may petition, by resolution, the State Employees' Insurance Board (hereafter referred to as "SEIB") at any time for acceptance into the Local Government Health Insurance Program, (hereafter referred to as "Program"). Upon acceptance of a groups' contract by SEIB, the group's effective date shall be the first day of the second full month following approval. See Section IV, H for complete details.

C. Application Fee

A \$50-per-employee (minimum \$100) application fee must be submitted by the local government unit along with the application package. The fee covers the equity buy-in into the Program's reserve, accumulated by existing units. This amount is due at time of application and is non-refundable. Application fee is subject to change. Contact the SEIB for current rate.

II. SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PLANS

Each employee is eligible for coverage by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama. Dental coverage is optional to the local government unit. The unit, <u>as a whole</u>, may elect dental coverage or not elect dental coverage.

III. PREMIUMS

Each local government unit is classified into either the "standard", "preferred" or 'preferred in transition" category for calculating active employee premiums. The criteria used to determine a unit's premium category is as follows:

A. Premium Categories

Standard

Units meeting one or more of the following criteria:

- New units with less than two (2) complete years of claims experience during the review period. For FY 2012, the review period was April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2011.
- Units, who enroll retirees in the Local Government Health Insurance Program, with less than 5% retiree participation in the unit's total enrollment.
- Units with less than 30% wellness participation in the preceding 12 months.

Preferred

Units who do not meet one of the above criteria for the standard premium category are classified in the preferred premium category for active employees.

Preferred in Transition

Units that do not qualify outright for the preferred rate group because the average claims costs for the past two years exceeded the LGHIP average. However, the unit's average claims costs were within range of the LGHIP average, so the SEIB is transitioning the unit to the preferred rate group as long as the unit does not meet one of the other criteria for the standard rate category.

Retiree

Retiree premiums are calculated based on the claims experience for retirees and do not use standard, preferred or preferred in transition premium categories.

B. Premium Discount

For 2013, Local Government units that have 80% or greater wellness participation will receive a \$10 premium discount per active employee each month. Employees may participate through a worksite wellness screening or by having a provider screening form completed by their health care provider. The form is located on the SEIB website.

Blue Cross Blue Shield

Active Rates

| | | Preferred Rates | | Preferred in Transition | | | Standard Rates | | | |
|--------|--|-------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------|--------------------|-------------------|
| Rate | | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total |
| A B | Active subscriber Active subscriber & dependent | \$ 378 \$ 378 | \$ 541 | \$ 378 \$ 919 | \$ 400 \$ 400 | \$ 608 | \$ 400 \$ 1,008 | \$ 412 \$ 412 | \$ 627 | \$ 412 \$1,039 |
| J K | Active subscriber (no dental) Active subscriber & dependent (no dental) | \$ 360 \$ 360 | \$ 515 | \$ 360 \$ 875 | \$ 382 \$ 382 | \$ 582 | \$ 382 \$ 964 | \$ 394 \$ 394 | \$ 601 | \$ 394 \$ 995 |

Blue Cross Blue Shield

Retiree Rates

| Rate | | Retiree Share | | _ | endent hare | 1 | Total | |
|-------------|---|------------------|-------------------|----|----------------|----------|-----------------------|--|
| H I | Retired subscriber (not Medicare) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) | \$ \$ | 779 779 | \$ | 654 | \$ \$ | 779 1,433 | |
| С | Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) | \$ | 779 | \$ | 384 | \$ | 1,163 | |
| L M N | Retired subscriber (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) (no dental) | \$ \$ \$ | 761 761 761 | \$ | 628 358 | | 761 1,389 1,119 | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| D E F | Retired subscriber (Medicare) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) | \$ \$ \$ | 376 376 376 | \$ | 540 384 | \$ \$ | 376 916 760 | |
| O P Q | Retired subscriber (Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) (no dental) | \$ \$ \$ | 358 358 358 | \$ | 514 358 | \$ \$ | 358 872 716 | |
| | | | | | | | | |

Blue Cross Blue Shield

COBRA Rates

| | | Preferred Rates | | | Preferred in Transition | | | Standard Rates | | |
|------|---|-------------------|--------------------|---------|-------------------------|--------------------|----------|-------------------|--------------------|----------|
| Rate | | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total | Employee Share | Dependent Share | Total |
| А | Active subscriber | \$ 386 | | \$ 386 | \$ 408 | | \$ 408 | \$ 420 | | \$ 420 |
| В | Active subscriber & dependent | \$ 386 | \$ 552 | \$ 938 | \$ 408 | \$ 620 | \$ 1,028 | \$ 420 | \$ 640 | \$ 1,060 |
| J | Active subscriber (no dental) | \$ 367 | | \$ 367 | \$ 390 | | \$ 390 | \$ 402 | | \$ 402 |
| K | Active subscriber & dependent (no dental) | \$ 367 | \$ 525 | \$ 892 | \$ 390 | \$ 594 | \$ 984 | \$ 402 | \$ 613 | \$ 1,015 |
| U | COBRA Disabled (Single) | \$ 567 | | \$ 567 | \$ 600 | | \$ 600 | \$ 618 | | \$ 618 |
| w | COBRA Disabled (Family) | \$ 567 | \$ 552 | \$1,119 | \$ 600 | \$ 620 | \$ 1,220 | \$ 618 | \$ 640 | \$ 1,258 |
| U | COBRA Disabled (Single) (no dental) | \$ 540 | | \$ 540 | \$ 573 | | \$ 573 | \$ 591 | | \$ 591 |
| W | COBRA Disabled (Family) (no dental) | \$ 540 | \$ 525 | \$1,065 | \$ 573 | \$ 594 | \$1,167 | \$ 591 | \$ 613 | \$ 1,204 |

Blue Cross Blue Shield Retiree COBRA Rates

| | | | Retiree | De | pendent | | | |
|-------------|---|----------------|-------------------|-------|------------|----------------|-----------------------|--|
| Rate | | Share | | Share | | 7 | Total | |
| H I C | Retired subscriber (not Medicare) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) | \$ \$ | 795 795 795 | \$ | 667 392 | | 795 1,462 1,187 | |
| L M N | Retired subscriber (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (not Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) (no dental) | \$ \$ | 776 776 776 | \$ | 641 365 | | 776 1,417 1,141 | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| D E F | Retired subscriber (Medicare) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) | \$ \$ \$ | 384 384 384 | \$ | 551 392 | \$ \$ \$ | 384 935 776 | |
| O P Q | Retired subscriber (Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (not Medicare) (no dental) Retired subscriber (Medicare) & dependent (Medicare) (no dental) | \$ \$ | 365 365 365 | \$ | 524 365 | \$ \$ | 365 889 730 | |
| | | | | | | | | |

IV. INSTRUCTIONS FOR APPLICATION PACKAGE

- A. Complete the General Information sheet as follows:
 - 1. Put a check mark in the blank space beside "Initial Enrollment" for the first General Information sheet submitted to the State Employees' Insurance Board.
 - 2. After local governments are enrolled into the Program, this form will also be used to revise enrollment information. When a change occurs in the address, local government health insurance administrator, contact person for billing purposes, or the telephone number, submit a new General Information sheet with the appropriate changes and put a check mark in the blank space beside "Revised Enrollment Information."
 - 3. Enter the nine-digit Federal Identification Number.
 - 4. Enter the name of the county, municipality, fire or water district or authority, or other group who is eligible for enrollment in the Program.
 - 5. Enter the complete address, including post office box number, where the billing statements and other correspondence related to the Program are to be mailed.
 - 6. Enter the insurance carrier who currently administers the health insurance plan.
 - 7. Enter the person's name, title, telephone number and e-mail address that will be primarily responsible for managing and making decisions concerning the Program.
 - 8. Enter the person's name, title, telephone number and e-mail address that should receive the monthly invoices and be contacted for any enrollment/billing information.
 - 9. Enter the name of an additional employee who may be contacted for information when the primary unit contact is unavailable.
 - 10. Enter the name of the person completing the form.
- B. Distribute blank Local Government Health Insurance Enrollment Forms and Declination of Coverage Forms to all eligible participants. These forms are included in this Administrative Guide and can be reproduced as needed. After these forms are completed, collect them and submit them to the SEIB along with the rest of the enrollment package.
- C. Complete the Participation sheet as follows:
 - 1. Enter the name of the county, municipality, fire or water district or authority, or other group who is eligible for enrollment in the Program.
 - 2. Enter the total number of full-time permanent employees, elected officers and retirees who enroll in or decline participation in the Program. Eligible participants are identified in the Eligibility & Enrollment Rules section.
 - 3. Enter the total number of employees who completed the enrollment forms and are being enrolled in the Program for **single** coverage.
 - 4. Enter the total number of employees who are enrolled for **family** coverage.
 - 5. Enter the percentage of the employee premium for single coverage paid by the employer and the percentage paid by the employee.
 - 6. Enter the percentage of the dependent premium for family coverage paid by the employer and the percentage paid by the employee.
 - 7. Circle Yes or No for the dental option. For employees to receive dental benefits, the local government unit must choose for all employees to have dental benefits.
 - 8. Circle Yes or No whether your Local Government Unit will allow retirees without Medicare to continue on insurance.

- 9. Circle Yes or No whether your Local Government Unit will allow retirees with Medicare to continue on insurance.
- 10. Circle Yes or No whether your Local Government Unit will allow elected officials to participate.

We also require that a complete listing of all employee names and social security numbers by department be included with this application. This is for informational purposes and may be used to verify employment status.

- D. After carefully studying all information and requirements relating to the Program, the county, municipality, fire or water district or authority, or other eligible group should adopt and approve a resolution to officially apply for enrollment in the Program. (A resolution is included.)
- E. Submit the following documents:
 - 1. General Information sheet
 - 2. Participation sheet
 - 3. Resolution
 - 4. Application fee
 - 5. An Enrollment Form, with documentation, or Declination of Coverage Form, with acceptable proof, for each eligible participant.
 - 6. A listing by department of employee names and Social Security numbers.
 - 7. A listing of COBRA participants.

| By Mail | By Overnight Delivery |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| State Employees' Insurance Board | State Employees' Insurance Board |
| Post Office Box 304900 | 201 South Union Street, Suite 200 |
| Montgomery, Alabama 36130-4900 | Montgomery, Alabama 36104 |

- F. If the SEIB accepts the application for enrollment into the Program, a certificate of participation will be mailed to the eligible group. If the application is not accepted, the reason for not being accepted will be forwarded to the group.
- G. SEIB will periodically conduct reviews of those groups accepted into the Program to ensure conformity with the rules and regulations governing the Program.
- H. Group contract's effective date shall be the first day of the second full month following approval by the SEIB. For example, complete packets received on January 20 would be eligible for an effective date of March 1. Complete packets received on January 21 would be eligible for an effective date of April 1.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

General Information

| This Application is: | Initial E | Enrollment |
|--------------------------|------------------------|---------------------------|
| | Revise | ed Enrollment Information |
| Federal ID Number | | |
| Name | | |
| Address for Billing | 1 | |
| | Stree | t Address or P. O. Box |
| _ | Stree | t Address or P. O. Box |
| | City | State |
| | ZIP Code | County |
| Prior Insurance Carrier | | |
| Health Insurance Admi | nistrator | |
| | | Telephone () |
| Unit E-Mail Address | | |
| Contact Person for Billi | ng | |
| | | |
| T | elephone () | |
| Unit E-Mail Address | | |
| Additional Contact Pers | son | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | DO NOT WRITE IN THIS S | |
| | | DATE |
| | | DENTAL |
| EFFECTIVE DATE | | |
| | | (MEDICARE) |

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

Participation Sheet

| | Active: Enrolled | Decli | ned |
|-----|---------------------------------------|------------------|----------|
| | Elected: Enrollec | Decli | ned |
| | Retired: Enrolled | Not E | inrolled |
| | Total Eligible Participants: Enrolled | l Decli | ned |
| 3. | Eligible participants enrolled for | single coverage | |
| 4. | Eligible participants enrolled for | family coverage | 1 |
| 5. | % of employee premium to be p | oaid by employer | |
| | % of employee premium to be p | oaid by employee | |
| 6. | % of dependent premium to be | paid by employer | · |
| | % of dependent premium to be | paid by employee | · |
| 7. | Dental option is elected for all e | mployees: YES | NO |
| 8. | Retirees | YES | NO |
| 9. | Retirees with Medicare | YES | NO |
| 10. | Elected officials | YES | NO |

RESOLUTION

| | HEREAS, | wishes to participate in the Local Gover | |
|--------------------------|--|---|---------------|
| Insurance | e Program established by Code of | of Alabama 1975, Section 36-29-14, as amended; | and |
| | | | |
| | | e by the rules and procedures promulgated I I Government Health Insurance Program; and | by the State |
| | | | |
| | | mitted for enrollment into this health insurance | Program has |
| been veni | fied for completeness and accura | acy, and | |
| WI | HEREAS, an application fee is | s submitted as part of this Application Package | as our equity |
| | | ve accumulated in prior years by existing eligible of | |
| NC | OW, THEREFORE, BE IT RES | OLVED, that ipate in the Local Government Health Insurance | _does hereby |
| submit thi administer | is application package to partici red by the State Employees' Ins | sipate in the Local Government Health Insurance surance Board. | Program, as |
| | | | |
| ADOPTE | D AND APPROVED THIS DATE | Ę: | |
| | | | |
| | Autho | orized Person's Signature | |
| | , totale | | |
| | Typ | ne or Print Name & Title | |

V. ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT RULES

A. Minimum Employee Participation

All current and future eligible active employees, and elected officers if covered by the unit, must be enrolled for acceptance into the Program unless proof of other group insurance is provided. All employees who decline coverage must sign a "Declination of Coverage" form (LG04) and submit acceptable proof of other group coverage.

If the unit elects to provide insurance coverage for its retirees, such coverage must be offered to all current and future retirees. The SEIB may periodically require and verify employment census.

B. Eligible Participants

1. Employee - an employee must be a permanent active full-time employee, who is not on layoff or leave of absence. An employee must be employed in a bona fide employer-employee relationship, working 30 hours (minimum) per week. You are not eligible for coverage if you are classified as an employee on a temporary, part-time, seasonal, intermittent, emergency or contract basis, or if employment is known to be for a period of one year or less.

Elected officers of a local government unit are also eligible while in office. Elected officers will be classified for insurance purposes as active employees.

- 2. Retiree a retired employee may elect to continue coverage under a plan designated by the SEIB if:
 - retiree has 25 years of creditable service, regardless of age, or
 - retiree has 10 years of service and:
 - is 60 years old or
 - is determined to be disabled by the Social Security Administration or the Retirement Systems of Alabama

An elected official retiring from a unit that offers health insurance coverage to its retirees, but who is not eligible to receive the same pension benefits from the unit due to local, state or federal law as full-time employees may be eligible to elect to continue coverage under a plan designated by the SEIB if the retired official:

- has at least 25 years of service with the unit he or she is retiring from, regardless of age,
 and
- has been enrolled in the LGHIP for at least 10 years prior to the date of retirement. (If unit has been enrolled in the LGHIP less than 10 years, the elected official must have been enrolled from the unit's inception date.)

Before the SEIB will consider coverage for a retired elected official, the unit must submit an elected official retiree enrollment form (Form LG10), which will include references to the local state or federal law that prohibits pension benefits and certify that no local, state or federal law will be violated by continuing the retired elected official's health insurance coverage.

Individuals enrolling in the LGHIP after January 1, 2005 must:

- have been enrolled in the local government health plan for 10 years prior to the date of retirement, or
- if unit has been enrolled less than 10 years, the employee must have been enrolled continuously from the unit's inception date.

Any retired employee who does not meet the above requirements will be considered a termination.

The local government unit makes the determination of allowing eligible retirees to continue on the Program. The unit also makes the determination to continue retiree coverage until Medicare eligible or indefinitely.

C. Eligible Dependents

The term "dependent" includes the following individuals, subject to appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.):

- 1. Your spouse (excludes divorced or common law spouse)
- 2. A child under age 26, only if the child is:
 - a. Your son or daughter
 - b. A child legally adopted by you (including any probationary period during which the child is required to live with you)
 - c. Your stepchild
 - d. Your grandchild, niece or nephew for whom the court has granted custody to you or your spouse.

(Exception: children age 19 and older who are eligible for coverage through their employer are not eligible for coverage under LGHIP.)

- 3. An incapacitated dependent over age 25 will be considered for coverage provided dependent:
 - a. is unmarried,
 - b. is permanently mentally or physically disabled or incapacitated,
 - c. is so incapacitated as to be incapable of self-sustaining employment,
 - d. is dependent upon the subscriber for 50% or more support.
 - e. is otherwise eligible for coverage as a dependent except for age,
 - f. the condition must have occurred prior to the dependent's 26th birthday, and
 - g. is not eligible for any other group insurance benefits.

Neither a reduction in work capacity nor inability to find employment is, of itself, evidence of eligibility. If a mentally or physically disabled dependent is working, despite his disability, the extent of his earning capacity will be evaluated.

To apply, contact the SEIB to obtain an Incapacitated Dependent Certification Form. Final approval of incapacitation will be determined by Medical Review. Proof of disability must be provided to the SEIB within 60 days from the date the child would otherwise cease to be covered because of age.

Exception: There are two situations under which it may be possible to add an incapacitated dependent who otherwise meets the eligibility requirements except for age:

when a new employee requests coverage for an incapacitated dependent within 60 days of employment, or

when an employee's incapacitated dependent is covered under a spouse's employer group health insurance for at least 18 consecutive months and:

- the employee's spouse loses the other coverage because:
 - a. spouse's employer ceases operations, or
 - b. spouse's loss of eligibility due to termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment, or
 - c. spouse's employer stopped contribution to coverage,
- a change form is submitted to the SEIB within 30 days of the incapacitated dependent's loss of other coverage, and
- Medical Review approved incapacitation status.

The above requirements must be met as a minimum threshold in order to be considered for incapacitation status. The SEIB shall make the final decision as to whether an application for incapacitated status will be accepted. NOTE: The SEIB reserves the right to periodically re-certify incapacitation.

Exclusion: You may not cover your wife, husband or other dependents if they are insured or if they are eligible to be insured as an active employee in the Local Government Health Insurance Program.

D. Initial Employee Enrollment

Eligible employees, elected officers, retirees and dependents who make application on or before the effective date of the Group Contract will be enrolled for coverage as of the effective date of the Group Contract. All eligible employees, elected officials and retirees must either elect or decline coverage.

Eligible retirees must enroll on the date they first become eligible for retiree health benefits. If coverage is declined, enrollment will not be allowed after the retirement date. Retirees who do not elect coverage will not be allowed to enroll at a later date.

The 270-day waiting period for pre-existing conditions shall be waived for employees, elected officers, retirees and dependents enrolled during the initial Group enrollment.

<u>This rule applies to county commissions only</u>: If a county commission chooses to cover elected officials, all county commissioners must enroll in the LGHIP or decline coverage and submit provide proof of other employer group coverage. All other elected officials of the county have the following options:

1. **Enroll in the LGHIP** – Elected officials may enroll in the LGHIP at the time the county commission initially joins the LGHIP or upon election to office. Elected officials will be treated as full-time employees.

- 2. **Decline coverage in the LGHIP** Elected officials may decline coverage in the LGHIP at the time the county commission initially joins the LGHIP or upon election to office. If a declination form with proof of other employer group coverage is submitted, the elected official may enroll in the LGHIP at a later date upon loss of other employer group coverage or at open enrollment.
- 3. Opt out of the LGHIP If the elected official opts not to enroll in the LGHIP at the time the county commission initially joins the LGHIP or upon election to office and does not submit a declination form with proof of other employer group coverage, the elected official may only be offered the option to enroll in the LGHIP upon election to a new term of office.

Elected officials (other than county commissioners) that fail to elect one of the above options will be treated as if they chose option 3.

E. Subsequent Enrollment of New Employees

All employees hired after the effective date of the Group Contract shall be enrolled in the Program unless evidence of other group insurance is provided. All eligible employees and elected officials must either elect or decline coverage on date of eligibility. The effective date shall be the first day of the second full month following the new employee's date of hire. For example, if a new employee's hire date is in the month of January, the effective date of coverage will be March 1. Retirees must enroll on the date they first become eligible for retiree health benefits.

Local Government units may elect to have coverage effective for all new full-time employees on the date of employment. In order to make this election, the Local Government unit must complete and submit an "Effective Date of Coverage Election" form (Form LG05) to the SEIB during Open Enrollment. Once the election has been submitted and approved by the SEIB, coverage for all future full-time employees shall be effective on the date of employment. A prorated premium will be billed for new employees on the next billing cycle.

Local Government units may elect to choose one of the two options regarding the effective date of coverage for all new employees during Open Enrollment. Once Form LG05 has been accepted by the SEIB, the election will be effective January 1.

A 270-day waiting period for pre-existing conditions shall commence upon the date of hire. (Your waiting period for preexisting medical conditions may be waived or reduced under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. See Section I.)

F. Family Coverage Enrollment

A participating employee, elected officer or retiree in the Program may apply for family coverage either at their initial enrollment (enrollment form LG01), or acquiring a new dependent (change form LG02), or annual open enrollment (change form LG02) or dependent special enrollment (change form LG02).

Appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.) must be submitted to the SEIB.

If documentation is not received with an Enrollment Form or Change Form, the SEIB will send a notice to the employee to submit the documentation within 30 days. If documentation is not

received by the SEIB within 60 days, the SEIB has the right to disallow the request to add dependent coverage.

Initial Enrollment/New Employees:

New employees may elect to have dependent coverage begin on the date their coverage begins. Family coverage beginning the same date as the new employee's coverage will be subject to the 270-day waiting period.

Acquiring New Dependent:

If dependent coverage is not elected at the time new employees become covered, they may enroll for dependent coverage for the newly acquired dependent, within 60 days of acquiring a new dependent through marriage, birth, adoption, or custody of a grandchild, niece or nephew. This is subject to appropriate premium payments and the 270-day waiting period. The effective date of coverage will be the date of birth, adoption, or custody of a grandchild, niece or nephew. If the SEIB is notified of a new dependent after the 60 days, they will need to reapply during the annual open enrollment.

Annual Open Enrollment:

A participating employee, elected official or retiree may apply for family coverage during the month of November for a January 1 effective date.

Dependent Special Enrollment:

If a dependent loses their other group coverage, they may apply for Dependent Special Open Enrollment. The effective date of coverage will be the date other group coverage ceased. See "Special Enrollment Period, Dependents." The only dependents eligible are those that experienced a qualifying event.

G. Open Enrollment

Subsequent to the effective date of the Group's Contract, there shall be an Annual Open Enrollment held in November (for coverage to be effective January 1) of each year to allow active eligible employees not currently participating in the insurance program a chance to enroll.

Eligible participants may add dependents or family coverage. If an employee wishes to add family coverage to an existing individual plan during open enrollment, a change form (Form LG02) must be filled out.

Eligible participants are permitted to change insurance carriers/plans.

Local government units may elect the effective date of insurance for new hires (hire date or first day of second full month). Submit LG05 Form.

Local government units may add/drop retiree coverage for the unit by written request.

Local government units may add/drop Medicare retiree coverage for the unit by written request.

Local government units may add/drop elected official's coverage for the unit by written request.

Employees who have previously declined coverage must submit a completed "Declination of Coverage" form (LG04) with acceptable proof.

A unit may elect to add or drop the dental option during open enrollment. The effective date of that change will be January 1. A revised Participation Sheet is to be sent to the SEIB.

Forms shall be completed and signed in November with an effective date of January 1 indicated on the form and received in the SEIB office by November 30. If an employee does not want to change plans or add/drop family coverage during open enrollment, no paperwork is necessary.

H. Special Enrollment Period

Employees

Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, the LGHIP must offer a special enrollment period in addition to open enrollment for those employees who experience a qualifying event such as loss of their other employer group coverage or the addition of a dependent. However, since the LGHIP already requires that an employee enroll in the plan when they lose other employer group coverage, special enrollment will only apply to the following qualifying events not related to loss of coverage:

- the addition of a new dependent through birth, adoption or marriage or
- a substantial change in their other employer group coverage or
- a substantial change in the cost of their other employer group coverage.

To be eligible for special enrollment an employee must have a declination of coverage form with proof of other employer group coverage on file. Employees requesting special enrollment must notify the SEIB in writing within 30 days of a qualifying event. Notification should include:

- 1. a letter requesting participation in the special enrollment;
- 2. a completed enrollment form;
- 3.. Thereafter, the following documentation must be submitted within 60 days of the qualifying event:
 - a. proof of a qualifying event, listing the reason and date of loss for all individuals affected by loss of coverage; and
 - b. a Certificate of Creditable Coverage with end date.

All employees who lose their other employer group coverage, whether voluntarily or involuntarily must submit an enrollment form to the SEIB with coverage effective as of the date coverage is lost.

Dependents

To be eligible for dependent special enrollment an employee must submit a change form with proof of loss of other employer group coverage. Employees requesting dependent special enrollment must notify the SEIB in writing within 30 days of a qualifying event. Notification should include:

- 1. a letter requesting participation in the special enrollment:
- 2. a completed change form;
- 3. Thereafter, the following documentation must be submitted within 60 days of the qualifying event:
 - a. proof of a qualifying event, listing the reason and date of loss for all individuals affected by loss of coverage; and
 - b. a Certificate of Creditable Coverage with end date.

The effective date of coverage will be the date other group coverage ceased.

I. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

If you are covered by another plan before becoming covered by SEIB, the time you were covered will be credited toward the 270-day waiting period for preexisting conditions, if:

- 1. There is no greater than a 63-day break in coverage, and
- 2. The last coverage was "creditable coverage," i.e., under an individual or group health plan including COBRA, Medicare, Medicaid, U. S. Military, CHAMPUS, Federal Employee Program, Indian Health Service, Peace Corps Service, a state risk pool or a public health service.

In order to waive all or a portion of the waiting period for preexisting conditions, you must submit a Certificate of Creditable Coverage when you enroll.

J. Waiting Period for Preexisting Medical Conditions

Each participant is subject to a waiting period of 270 consecutive days before benefits for "preexisting medical conditions" are available. The 270-day waiting period commences on the employee's date of hire. Dependent's 270-day waiting period commences on the dependent's effective date. To be entitled to benefits under the contract, the entire 270-day waiting period must be served before the participant receives services or supplies or is admitted to the hospital for preexisting conditions. NOTE: The 270-day waiting period does not apply to pregnancy, newborns and recently adopted children.

A "preexisting medical condition" is any condition, no matter how caused, for which you received medical advice, diagnosis, care, or for which treatment was recommended or received during the six months before your coverage began.

The waiting period for preexisting medical conditions shall be waived for the following:

- 1. Employees, elected officers, retirees and dependents who enroll during the initial groups enrollment (hence, the group and employee's effective date are the same),
- 2. Certificate of Creditable Coverage verifying coverage without a 63-day break in service. This certificate must be obtained by the subscriber from the previous carrier. All or a portion of the 270-day waiting period may be waived.
- 3. Members under the age of 19.

K. When Coverage Commences

Coverage commences as of the effective date of the employee's insurance contract.

L. Cancellation of Family Coverage

An employee may drop family coverage at any time. The earliest effective date of cancellation will be the first day of the month following receipt of written notification (Form LG02) by the SEIB office. The SEIB may require proof of divorce (divorce decree) when dropping former spouse.

M. Transfers

Only new employees meeting the following criteria will be considered as transfers under the LGHIP:

- 1. New hire, previously covered by LGHIP or by the State Employees' Health Insurance Plan (SEHIP), and
- New hire, terminated employment with another local government unit covered by LGHIP, or State employee covered by SEHIP who became employed with a local government unit during the same calendar month of termination.

The local government unit hiring the new employee who is eligible to be treated as a transfer will be invoiced for the first month following the date of hire. Units electing coverage effective on the date of hire will be invoiced from that date.

N. Notice

Notice of any enrollment changes is the responsibility of the employee (for example: addition or deletion of dependents, address changes, etc.)

O. Military Leave

The Military Leave Policy of the Local Government Health Insurance Program (LGHIP) is in compliance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC-4317. Under the USERRA, an employee on qualified military leave has the right to elect continued health insurance coverage for himself or herself, and his or her dependents, during periods of military service.

The application of the LGHIP's Military Leave Policy depends upon whether the local government unit voluntarily complies with Alabama Act number 2002-430 (effective July 1, 2002):

- If a local government unit elects to voluntarily comply with Alabama Act number 2002-430 for its employees on military leave, then individual and dependent insurance coverage must be offered for as long as the local government unit compensates the employee on military leave. The local government unit can charge the employee only the normal employee's share of the health insurance premium, not the employer's share.
- 2. If a local government unit elects not to voluntarily comply with this law, then the LGHIP's Military Leave Policy will apply. Under LGHIP's Military Leave Policy, the individual premium for persons on military leave depends upon the length of service involved. For periods up to 30 days of training or service, the local government unit can charge the employee only the normal employee's share of the health insurance premium, not the employer's share. For periods of service longer than 30 days, the employee must be offered COBRA continuation coverage for 24 months. After receipt by the SEIB of appropriate military documentation, a COBRA election form will be sent to the employee.

When an employee on military leave status with family coverage has his or her coverage terminated, the local government must offer the dependents one of the following two options:

- 1. Offer COBRA Continuation Coverage. The COBRA coverage period for dependents is limited to 36 months. The COBRA coverage period for dependents will terminate prior to 36 months if:
 - a. an employee's military leave period ends within 36 months and
 - b. the employee returns to work within 63 days of the end of military leave; or
- 2. Offer Regular Dependent Coverage. Families will be allowed to continue their health insurance coverage as if the employee on military leave was still an active employee. This dependent coverage period is limited to 24 months or the expiration of the employee's military leave, whichever is shorter. The premium for this dependent coverage will continue to be included on the unit invoice, minus the employee share of the premium. The local government unit will be responsible for collection and payment of the premium.

If an employee's military leave period is longer than 24 months, the coverage for dependents will be converted to COBRA coverage in the 25th month. The COBRA coverage will be offered for an additional 12 months and billed accordingly.

If an employee on military leave does not return to work at the end of the military leave period and the military leave period was less than 24 months, the coverage for dependents will be converted to COBRA coverage and extended for a period not to exceed 36 months in total.

Each local government unit will decide which option will be offered to the families of employees on military leave. Once a decision has been made, the local government unit must treat all military leave dependents uniformly.

If an employee returns to work less than 63 days after the expiration of military leave, the employee (and the dependents covered at the time of the military leave) must be added to coverage without a waiting period for preexisting medical conditions.

P. Declination of Coverage

Employees may decline coverage at any time. The earliest effective date of cancellation will be the first day of the month following receipt of **both the Declination of Coverage and acceptable proof of group coverage with another employer**. Acceptable proof is a Certificate of Creditable Coverage or letter from employer/insurance carrier verifying current coverage.

Q. Premium Payments

The SEIB bills in advance for the following month's coverage. To be eligible for coverage members must comply with the LGHIP's enrollment and eligibility rules. Acceptance of premium payment does not guarantee coverage.

VI. RETIREMENT

A. Continuation of Coverage

Eligible retirees who continue on the insurance will remain on the local government unit's billing and it will be the responsibility of the local government unit to collect the appropriate premiums. A change form (LG02) should be sent to the SEIB, indicating a rate change from active to retired status and the effective date of the retirement. The change form should be sent prior to the retirement date.

If Medicare retirees are allowed to continue coverage, submit a Change Form and a copy of the retiree's Medicare card, indicating a rate change from "Not Medicare" to "Medicare." If a retiree's only dependent is eligible for Medicare, submit a Change Form and a copy of the dependent's Medicare card, indicating a rate change from "Not Medicare" to "Medicare." The change form should be sent prior to the Medicare effective date.

B. Termination of Coverage

An active employee, who retires from a local government unit that does not allow retirees to continue on the coverage, will be offered COBRA upon written notification of retirement from the local government unit. (See "Termination of Services".)

An active employee who retires from a local government unit that allows retirees to continue coverage has the option of electing retiree coverage or COBRA. If the retiree chooses to cancel health insurance, the unit will need to send a Cancellation Form with the retiree's signature prior to retirement date. If COBRA coverage is elected, the retiree will forfeit his or her right to elect retiree coverage at a later date. If a retiree intends to request COBRA, it should be indicated on the Cancellation Form prior to the retirement date. The Cancellation Form must be received by the SEIB prior to the retirement date for the retiree to receive a COBRA notice.

If the Cancellation Form is received after the retirement date the reason for cancellation should be "non-payment" and COBRA will not be offered.

A retired employee whose local government unit does not allow Medicare retirees to continue on the health insurance must submit a Cancellation Form prior to the retiree's Medicare eligibility date. A copy of the Medicare card may be required. COBRA will be offered to retiree and dependents for 18 months. If the retiree declines COBRA coverage, dependents will still be eligible for 18 months.

A retired employee whose local government unit **does** allow Medicare retirees to continue on the insurance and the retiree **chooses not** to continue coverage, the unit will need to submit a completed Cancellation Form prior to the Medicare effective date, indicating a request for COBRA and signed by the retiree. COBRA will be offered to the dependents for 18 months.

Eligible retirees must enroll on the date they first become eligible for retiree health benefits. If coverage is declined, enrollment will not be allowed after the retirement date. Retirees who do not elect coverage will not be allowed to enroll at a later date.

C. Supernumeraries

Supernumeraries will be classified for insurance purposes as retired employees.

D. Provision for Medicare

1. Active Employees

The SEIB provides active employees over age 65, coverage under the Local Government Health Insurance Plan, under the same conditions as any employee under age 65. Medicare is secondary to benefits payable under the LGHIP for employees over age 65 and their spouses over age 65. If the service is also covered by Medicare, the claim can be submitted to Medicare which may pay all or a portion of the unpaid balance of the claim subject to Medicare limitations.

SEIB will not provide an active employee or his/her spouse with benefits that supplement Medicare. The employee has the right to elect coverage under the LGHIP on the same basis as any other employee.

The plan will be the primary payer for both items and services covered by Medicare. (Note that Medicare covers hospitalization, post-hospital nursing home care, home health

services.) This means that the plan will pay the covered claims and those of the employee's Medicare entitled spouse first, up to the limits contained in the plan, and Medicare may pay all or a portion of the unpaid balance of the claims, if any, subject to Medicare limitations. If the employee's spouse is not entitled to Medicare, the plan will be the sole source of payment of the spouse's claims.

Since the LGHIP also covers items and services not covered by Medicare, the plan will be the sole source of payment of medical claims for these services.

2. Retired Employees

Health benefits will be modified when you or your dependent becomes entitled to Medicare. Coverage under the plan will be reduced by those benefits payable under Medicare Parts A and B. If a retiree or dependent becomes entitled to Medicare because of a disability before age 65, the retiree must notify the SEIB to be eligible for the reduced premiums. A copy of the retiree's or their dependent's Medicare card and a Change Form that indicates the rate change must be submitted if the unit covers Medicare retirees.

The LGHIP remains primary for retirees until the retiree is entitled/eligible to Medicare. Upon Medicare entitlement, the retiree's coverage under the LGHIP will complement his/her Medicare Parts A and B coverages. Medicare will be the primary payer and the LGHIP will be the secondary payer. A Medicare retiree and/or Medicare dependent should have both Medicare Parts A and B to have adequate coverage with the LGHIP.

Medicare Part B premiums are the retiree's responsibility. These premiums are deducted from the retiree's Social Security check.

Medicare now offers Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage. Retirees have the option of keeping the LGHIP prescription drug coverage and not enrolling in the Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage. If a retiree elects to enroll in Medicare Part D he/she cannot continue to have LGHIP prescription drug coverage. Please notify the SEIB immediately if a retiree elects to enroll for Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage.

VII. TERMINATION OF SERVICE

A. When Coverage Terminates

The member's coverage will terminate:

- 1. On the last day of the month in which the member's employment terminates.
- 2. When this plan is discontinued.
- 3. When premium payments cease.
- 4. In addition to the above, the coverage terminates for a dependent:
 - a. on the last day of the month in which such person ceases to be an eligible dependent, or
 - b. if the dependent becomes eligible to be insured as an employee in the Program.

In many cases you will have the option to choose continuation of group benefits as provided by the Public Health Service Act. (See COBRA Section.)

B. Family and Medical Leave Act

The State Employees' Insurance Board will adhere to the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act.

C. Leave without Pay (LWOP)

Employees on leave without pay may continue their health insurance coverage for a maximum of 12 months. The employee will remain on the Local Government unit's billing. If the unit requires the employee to make the premium payment and the employee elects not to pay or they are canceled for nonpayment of premiums, the unit is to send in a Cancellation Form to the SEIB office indicating the reason for cancellation. When the Cancellation Form is received, the SEIB office will send a COBRA notice to the employee. Once an employee has been on leave without pay for 12 months, the Local Government unit is to notify the SEIB. The employee will be offered COBRA at that time.

If the employee returns to work and had elected not to continue their coverage while on leave without pay, the employee will be treated as a new hire. If the employee returns to work and had elected to continue coverage under COBRA, the employee will be treated as a transfer.

D. Continuation of Group Health Coverage (COBRA)

All COBRA applications and information concerning COBRA is handled through the SEIB office. See "Election Period."

NEW UNITS ONLY: All current COBRA subscribers should be marked in red as "COBRA." List them separately on the employee departmental listing. Include their name, social security number, address, qualifying event, and the date COBRA coverage originally began. <u>Do not fill out an enrollment form on the COBRA subscribers.</u> We will send them a letter and a COBRA application when we receive your listing.

The Public Health Service Act [42 USL Sections 300bb-1 through 300bb-8] requires that the SEIB offer employees and their families the opportunity for a temporary extension of health coverage (called "continuation coverage") at group rates in certain instances where coverage under the plan would otherwise end. COBRA coverage can be particularly important for several reasons:

- First, it will allow employees to continue group health care coverage beyond the point at which they would ordinarily lose it.
- Second, it can prevent employees from incurring a break in coverage (persons with 63-day breaks in creditable coverage may be required to satisfy preexisting condition exclusion periods if they obtain health coverage elsewhere).
- Third, it could allow employees to qualify for coverage under the Alabama Health Insurance Program (AHIP) after their COBRA coverage ends. For more information about AHIP, call the SEIB at 1.866.833.3375.

This information is intended to inform employers, in a summary fashion, of their employee's rights and obligations under the continuation coverage provisions of the law. You should take the time to read this carefully to ensure that your employees are aware of their COBRA rights.

1. Qualified Beneficiaries

COBRA continuation coverage is a continuation of coverage under the Local Government Health Insurance Program (LGHIP) when coverage would otherwise end because of a life event known as a "qualifying event." Specific qualifying events are listed below. After a qualifying event, COBRA continuation coverage must be offered to each person who is a qualified beneficiary. Employees, their spouses and dependent children could become qualified beneficiaries if coverage under the LGHIP is lost because of a qualifying event. Under the LGHIP, qualified beneficiaries who elect COBRA continuation coverage must pay for such coverage

Individuals entitled to COBRA continuation coverage are called qualified beneficiaries. Individuals who may be qualified beneficiaries are the spouse and dependent children of a covered employee and, in certain circumstances, the covered employee. Under current law, in order to be a qualified beneficiary, an individual must generally be covered under the LGHIP on the day before the event that caused a loss of coverage such as termination of employment, or a divorce from, or death of, the covered employee. (An increase in the cost of retiree coverage relative to active employee coverage is also considered a loss of coverage for COBRA purposes.) In addition, a child born to the covered employee, or who is placed for adoption with the covered employee, during the period of COBRA continuation coverage, is also a qualified beneficiary.

An employee will become a qualified beneficiary if he or she loses coverage under the LGHIP because either one of the following qualifying events happens:

- hours of employment are reduced, or
- employment ends for any reason other than gross misconduct.

A spouse of an employee will become a qualified beneficiary if he or she loses coverage under the LGHIP because either one of the following qualifying events happens:

- spouse dies:
- spouse's hours of employment are reduced;
- spouse's employment ends for any reason other than gross misconduct;
- spouse becomes entitled to Medicare benefits (under Part A, Part B or both); or
- spouse becomes divorced or legally separated from employee.

Dependent children will become qualified beneficiaries if they lose coverage under the LGHIP because any of the following qualifying events happens:

- the parent-employee dies;
- the parent-employee's hours of employment are reduced;
- the parent-employee's employment ends for any reason other than gross misconduct;
- the parent-employee becomes entitled to Medicare benefits (under Part A, Part B or both);
- the parents become divorced or legally separated; or
- the child stops being eligible for coverage under the LGHIP as a "dependent child."

2. Coverage Available

If a qualified beneficiary chooses continuation coverage, the SEIB is required to offer coverage which, as of the time coverage is being provided, is identical to the coverage provided under the plan to similarly situated employees or family members.

3. When the Employer Should Notify the SEIB

COBRA continuation coverage will be offered to qualified beneficiaries only after the SEIB has been notified that a qualifying event has occurred. The employer is responsible for notifying the SEIB of the following qualifying events:

- end of employment,
- reduction of hours of employment or
- death of an employee.

Employer must submit written notice to the SEIB within 30 days of the date of the event or the date in which coverage would end under the LGHIP because of the event, whichever is later. All notices should be sent to the address listed under "SEIB Contact Information" at the end of this section.

4. When Employee Should Notify the SEIB

The employee or a family member has the responsibility to inform the SEIB of the following qualifying events:

- divorce,
- · legal separation, or
- a child losing dependent status.

Written notice must be given to the SEIB within 60 days of the date of the event or the date in which coverage would end under the LGHIP because of the event, whichever is later. All notices should be sent to the address listed under "SEIB Contact Information" at the end of this section.

5. Election Period

When the SEIB is notified that a qualifying event has happened, COBRA continuation coverage will be offered to each qualified beneficiary. Each qualified beneficiary will have an independent right to elect COBRA continuation coverage. In addition, a covered employee may elect COBRA continuation coverage on behalf of his or her spouse and either covered parent may elect COBRA continuation coverage on behalf of their children.

A qualified beneficiary has 60 days from the date coverage is lost because of a qualifying event, or the date notice of COBRA election rights is sent to the qualified beneficiary, whichever is later, to inform the SEIB that COBRA continuation coverage has been elected.

If a qualified beneficiary does not choose continuation coverage, his or her group health insurance will end.

6. Length of Coverage

COBRA continuation coverage is a temporary continuation of coverage. COBRA continuation coverage will last for up to a total of 36 months when one of the following qualifying events occurs:

- · death of the employee,
- divorce or legal separation, or
- dependent child loses eligibility as a "dependent child" under LGHIP.

COBRA continuation coverage will last for up to a total of 18 months when one of the following qualifying events occurs:

- end of employment or
- a reduction in the hours of employment.

There are only two ways to extend the 18-month COBRA continuation coverage period:

- <u>Disability</u> if a covered employee or former employee is determined by the Social Security Administration to be disabled and the SEIB is notified within 30 days of the determination, the covered employee or former employee and his or her entire family may be entitled to receive up to an additional 11 months of COBRA continuation coverage. The disability would have to have started before the 60th day of COBRA continuation coverage and must last at least until the end of the 18-month period of continuation coverage. (A copy of the Social Security Administration determination must be provided to the SEIB at the address listed under "SEIB Contact Information" at the end of this section.)
- Second Qualifying Event if an employee's or former employee's family experiences another qualifying event while receiving 18 months of COBRA continuation coverage, the spouse and dependent children may be eligible to get up to 18 additional months of COBRA continuation coverage. The SEIB must be notified within 30 days of the second qualifying event. This extension may be available to the employee's or former employee's spouse and any dependent children receiving COBRA continuation coverage when one of the following qualifying events occurs:
- · employee or former employee dies,
- employee or former employee becomes entitled to Medicare benefits (under Part A, Part B or both),
- employee or former employee gets divorced or legally separated or
- dependent child loses eligibility as a "dependent child" under LGHIP.

For the extension to apply, the above listed events must have caused the spouse or dependent child to lose coverage under the LGHIP had the first qualifying event not occurred.

7. FMLA

If an employee is on a leave of absence covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) and the employee does not return to work, the employee will be given the opportunity to elect COBRA continuation coverage. The period of the COBRA continuation coverage will begin when the employee failed to return to work following the expiration of FMLA leave or the employee informs the employer that he or she does not intend to return to work, whichever occurs first.

8. Premium Payment

If the employee or former employee qualifies for continuation coverage, he or she will be required to pay the group's premium plus 2% administrative fee directly to the State Employees' Insurance Board (SEIB). Members who are disabled under Title II or Title XVI of the Social Security Act, will be required to pay 150% of the group's premium for the 19th through the 29th month of coverage or the month that begins more than 30 days after the date is determined that the employee or former employee is no longer disabled under Title II or Title XVI of the Social Security Act, whichever comes first. Coverage will be canceled if payment is not received by the SEIB in a timely manner.

The initial premium payment must be received by the SEIB within forty-five (45) days from the date of election. All subsequent premiums are due on the first day of the month of coverage. There is a thirty (30) day grace period.

9. Termination of Continuation Coverage

The law provides that COBRA continuation coverage may be terminated for any of the following five reasons:

- a. SEIB no longer provides group health coverage;
- b. the premium is not paid on time;
- c. qualified beneficiary becomes covered by another group plan, unless the plan contains any exclusions or limitations with respect to any preexisting condition a qualified beneficiary may have:
- d. qualified beneficiary become entitled to Medicare;
- e. coverage has been extended for up to 29 months due to disability and there has been a final determination that the disability no longer exists.

Qualified beneficiaries do not have to show that they are insurable to choose continuation coverage. However, under the law, qualified beneficiaries may have to pay all or part of the premium for continuation coverage. There is a grace period of 30 days for payment of the regularly scheduled premium.

Note: If a COBRA subscriber/dependent becomes entitled to Medicare before becoming a qualified beneficiary, they may elect COBRA continuation coverage; however, their Medicare coverage will be primary and the COBRA continuation coverage will be secondary. Qualified beneficiaries **must** have Medicare Parts A and B in order to have full coverage.

10. Keep the SEIB Informed of Address Changes

In order for employees to protect their COBRA rights, they should keep the SEIB informed of any changes in the address of family members. Employees should maintain copies of all notices sent to the SEIB.

11. If an Employee Has Any Questions

Questions concerning COBRA continuation coverage rights may be addressed by calling the SEIB at 1.866. 836.9137 or 334.263.8326 or by mail at the contact listed below. For more information about COBRA rights, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and other laws affecting group health plans, employees may contact the nearest Regional or District Office of the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration (EBSA) or visit the EBSA website at www.dol.gov/ebsa.

12. SEIB Contact Information

All notices and requests for information should be sent to the following address:

State Employees' Insurance Board LGHIP COBRA Section 201 South Union Street, Suite 200 Post Office Box 304900 Montgomery, AL 36130-4900

E. Group Termination

A group may terminate coverage with the Local Government Health Insurance Program subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The employer, by resolution of the governing body, shall signify its intention and desire to withdraw from such plan in writing and by delivering a copy of such resolution by certified mail to the State Employees' Insurance Board, Post Office Box 304900, Montgomery, AL 36130-4900 no later than six months prior to the effective date of withdrawal.
- 2. Any employer that withdraws from participation shall be responsible for paying its claims incurred prior to the date of withdrawal, but not reported and paid prior to the date of withdrawal.
- 3. Any group that withdraws from participation shall serve a three-year waiting period from the effective date of the group's termination before such group (in good standing) may apply for re-enrollment into the Program.
- 4. Any organization that provides or administers health insurance benefits through the Local Government Health Insurance Program shall not provide or administer health insurance benefits to any entity that withdraws from the Local Government Health Insurance Program for a period of two years from the effective date of withdrawal.

VIII.

BILLING PROCEDURES

A. Payment Notice

The SEIB will generate an Invoice (see APPENDIX) and Listing of Employees Insured (see APPENDIX) for each local government unit. The invoice will be mailed each month and will also be available on the SEIB website. The Listing of Employees Insured information will be pulled from the unit's enrollment information. The Invoice is a summary of the total single and family subscribers insured, a tabulation of the previous balance owed, the current month's amount and the total balance due.

Upon receiving the Invoice, the unit is expected to return this notice with full payment of the total balance due. You should not make any corrections or adjustments to this balance. All corrections and adjustments will be included in the payment notice for the upcoming month. The unit may keep the Listing of Employees Insured for their records.

B. Invoice Changes

Additions, cancellations and changes in the current billing period and the upcoming months will be made from the proper forms (FORMS LG01, LG02, LG03, LG04, LG07, LG08, or LG09). These forms are to be sent separately. Upon receipt of the proper paperwork, credits/debits and COBRA information will be processed.

C. Premium Credits

There is a three-month (three billing cycles) time limit for premium credits. These credits will be issued for eligible participants **provided no claims have been filed**.

D. Automatic Draft Payment

Units may pay monthly premiums by automatic bank draft. The monthly invoice will indicate the amount withdrawn from the local government bank account on or after the first day of the following month. For example, a bill issued October 18, 2010 would include a notice that the new balance will be drafted from the unit's designated account on November 1. This service is offered at no charge to the local government unit.

Automatic drafts may be cancelled at any time. However, draft cancellations must be made at least five business days prior to the last business day of the month.

E. Electronic-check (E-check) Service

Payment by E-check is also available to pay monthly premiums. Please call the SEIB Accounting Department at 1.866.836.9737, extension 1561 to make E-check payments. Payments may also be made online at the SEIB website.

IX. FORMS

A. Enrollments

To enroll in the Program, a Local Government Enrollment Form (Form LG01 - See Appendix) must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

B. Changes

To add/drop family coverage to an existing contract, a Local Government Change Form (Form LG02 - See Appendix) *must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.*

To make changes to the existing plan (name changes, address changes, rate changes, etc.), a change form must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

C. Cancellations

To cancel all coverage, a Local Government Cancellation Form (Form LG03 - See Appendix) must be completed and submitted to the SEIB office.

D. Declination of Coverage

To decline or cancel coverage, a Local Government Declination of Coverage Form (Form LG04 - See Appendix) must be completed, signed by the employee and submitted to the SEIB office.

E. Pre-Authorized Payment Service Authorization Agreement
To enroll in the automatic bank draft program, a Pre-Authorized Payment Service Authorization
Agreement must be completed and signed.

F. Effective Date of Coverage Election Form

To elect to have coverage for all future eligible full-time employees to be effective on date of employment.

NOTE: All forms must be verified and signed by the designated payroll/personnel officer.

G. Provider Screening Form

If an employee cannot or chooses not to participate in an SEIB Worksite Wellness Screening, a health screening form completed by their physician may be submitted.

X. APPENDIX

State Employees' Insurance Board Local Government Health Insurance Plan P.O. Box 304900 Montgomery, AL 36130-4900



INVOICE AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Unit Name Unit Address Unit Address City State Zip Account #:
Invoice #:
Date:
Coverage Period:
Due Date:

| Policies/Coverages | |
|--|---|
| Single | Premiums Due |
| Dependent | |
| /oluntary | |
| otal (Date) Invoice | |
| | |
| | |
| Previous Balance | |
| Total Balance Due | |
| | <u> </u> |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| 201 South Unio | es' Insurance Board on Street, Suite 200 nery, AL 36104 |
| 1.866 | 6.836.9137 |
| VE A STAMP! EN UP FOR AUTOMATIC DRAFTS OR CALL OR ' ILL 1.866.836.9137 OR VISIT WWW.ALSEIB.ORG | VISIT OUR WEBSITE FOR PAYMENT BY E-CHECK. |
| | |
| Please Detach | h Here and Return |
| | BARCODE |
| ate) Invoice | Unit Name: |
| evious Balance | Unit Name: Unit Number: |
| tal Balance Due | Offic Hambol. |
| | |
| | |
| | Invoice #: |
| wine Devise and to | |
| | |
| tate Employees' Insurance Board | Amount Received: |
| turn Payment to: State Employees' Insurance Board O Box 304900 Montgomery, AL 36130-4900 | Invoice #: Amount Received: Check #: |

LGHIP Unit Billing

Unit:

Date: Page:

| Contract | SSN | Name | Cat | Tier | Ins | Employee Coverage From | Employee Coverage To | Employee Premium | Dependent Coverage From | Dependent Coverage To | Dependent Premium | Total Premium |
|----------|-----|------|-----|------|-----|---------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|------------------|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Wellness Participation for Fiscal Year 2012
 Wellness Participation for Fiscal Year 2013

Form LG01 Revised 12/11

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 ENROLLMENT FORM

270-day Waiting Period for pre-existing conditions*. Attach a Certificate of Creditable Coverage to waive all or a portion of the waiting period for pre-existing conditions.

| Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | | Sex | | CHE | CK CC | OVERAGE ELECTED |
|---|---------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------------|------------|------------|----------|--|
| | | | | | ☐ Sin | ale Co | overage |
| Social Security Number | | | Date of | Birth | | .g.c c c | |
| • | | | | | | | overage |
| Mailing Address | 1 | City | | | State | t depe | ndents below) ZIP Code |
| Mailing Address | | City | | | State | | ZIP Code |
| | | | | | | | |
| Home Telephone Number W | ork Telephone N | umber | | | E-mail A | Address | S: |
| | | | | | | | |
| - | Employment S | tatus (Ch | eck One) | l. | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| ☐ Full-time Employee ☐ Elected Official | Retired (| Not Medica | re Participant) |) | Ref | tired (M | ledicare Participant) |
| | | | | | | | |
| Note: If your Employment Status above is ⊠ R must provide a copy of your Red, White, | | | ered depend | dent(s) a | are cover | ed by | Medicare, you |
| | | ntation is re | | | | | |
| First Name Initial Last Name | | back of for ship to Em | | Date of | f Birth | So | ocial Security Number |
| | _ | | | | | | |
| | ☐ Husband | ☐ Wif | e | | | | |
| | ☐ Son | | ughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Stepson | ☐ Ste | pdaughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Son ☐ Stepson | | ughter pdaughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Son ☐ Stepson | | ughter pdaughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Son | □ Dai | ughter | | | | |
| | Stepson | | pdaughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Grandson | | ınddaughter | | | | |
| | ☐ Nephew | ☐ Nie | се | | | | |
| | ☐ Grandson ☐ Nephew | ☐ Gra | inddaughter ce | | | | |
| TO BE COMPLETED BY EMP | PLOYER | | AFFIR | RMAT | ION A | ND R | ELEASE |
| Full-time date of hire: | | I hereb | v affirm that | l have c | omnletely | read : | and fully understand the |
| | | | | | | | I attest that all the |
| Local Government Unit Name: | | | | | | | are true and correct. It is result in the forfeiture |
| Local Government Onit Name. | | of insu | rance cover | age and | l that I w | vill be | personally liable for all |
| | | | | | | | further understand that and I do hereby give |
| Account Number: | | permis | sion to rele | ase an | y inform | ation | necessary to evaluate, |
| | | | ster, and pro- entative actin | | | | to any person, entity or |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk: | Date: | - Ispies | JGLIVE GOLIII | 9 VII 1110 | . JEID 3 N | onun. | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | Employee S | ianatur | ·e | | Date |

A "pre-existing medical condition" is any condition, no matter how caused, for which you received medical advice, diagnosis, care or for which treatment was recommended or received during the six months before your coverage began.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Eligible Dependent

The term "dependent" includes the following individuals subject to appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.): (Appropriate documentation must be attached.)

- 1. Your spouse (excludes divorced or common-law spouse).
- A child under age 26, only if the child is:
 - a. your son or daughter,
 - b. a child legally adopted by you or your spouse (including any probationary period during which the child is required to live with you),
 - c. your stepchild.
 - d. your grandchild, niece or nephew for whom the court has granted custody to you or your spouse.

(Exception: children age 19 and older who are eligible for coverage through their employer are not eligible for coverage under LGHIP.)

- 3. An incapacitated dependent over age 25 will be considered for coverage provided dependent:
 - a. is unmarried.
 - b. is permanently mentally or physically disabled or incapacitated,
 - c. is so incapacitated as to be incapable of self-sustaining employment,
 - d. is dependent upon you for 50% or more support,
 - e is otherwise eligible for coverage as a dependent except for age,
 - f. the condition must have occurred prior to the dependent's 26th birthday and
 - g. is not eligible for any other group health insurance benefits.

Neither a reduction in work capacity nor inability to find employment is, of itself, evidence of eligibility. If a mentally or physically disabled dependent is working, despite his disability, the extent of his earning capacity will be evaluated.

To apply, contact the SEIB to obtain an Incapacitated Dependent Certification Form. Final approval of incapacitation will be determined by Medical Review. Proof of disability must be provided to the SEIB within 60 days from the date the child would cease to be covered because of age.

Exception: There are two situations under which it may be possible to add an incapacitated dependent who otherwise meets the eligibility requirements except for age:

- 1. When a new employee requests coverage for an incapacitated dependent within 60 days of employment; or
- When an employee's incapacitated dependent is covered under a spouse's employer group health insurance for at least 18 consecutive months and:
 - a. the employee's spouse loses the other coverage because:
 - spouse's employer ceases operations, or
 - · spouse's loss of eligibility due to termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment, or
 - spouse's employer stopped contribution to coverage,
 - b. a change form is submitted to the SEIB within 30 days of the incapacitated dependent's loss of other coverage, and
 - c. Medical Review approved incapacitation status.

The above requirements must be met as a minimum threshold in order to be considered for incapacitation status. The SEIB shall make the final decision as to whether an application for incapacitated status will be accepted.

NOTE: The SEIB reserves the right to periodically re-certify incapacitation.

Exclusion: You may not cover your wife, husband, or other dependents if they are insured or if they are eligible to be insured as an active employee in the Local Government Health Insurance Program.

WAITING PERIODS

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) provides that if you are covered by another plan before becoming covered by the SEIB, the time you were covered will be credited toward the 270-day waiting period for pre-existing conditions, if:

- 1. There is no greater than a 63-day break in coverage, and
- The last coverage was "creditable coverage," i.e., under an individual or group health plan including COBRA, Medicare, Medicaid,
 U.S. Military, CHAMPUS, Federal Employee Program, Indian Health Service, Peace Corps Service, a state risk pool or a public health
 service.

In order to waive all or a portion of the waiting period for pre-existing conditions, you must submit a Certificate of Creditable Coverage when you enroll.

Effective January 1, 2011, pre-existing waiting period waived for members under the age of 19.

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD
POST OFFICE BOX 304900
MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900
334-263-8326 / 1-866-836-9137 / FAX: 334-517-9778

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 CHANGE FORM

| Sex Date of Birth | SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION | | | | | 0 | D-4- | - f D:-4h | |
|--|------------------------------------|--------------------|------------|-----------|---|-------------|-----------|---|--|
| CHANGE: MAILING ADDRESS To: To: To: | Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | | | | Sex | Date | of Birth | |
| NAME From: | Social Security Number | Contract Number | r | | Home Telephone Numbe | r | Work | Telephone Number | |
| RATE: Retired Subscriber (Not Medicare Participant) RATE: Retired Subscriber (Medicare Participant) Dependent Medicare Depe | CHANGE: MAILING ADDRESS | To: | | | | | | | |
| RATE: Retired Subscriber (Not Medicare Participant) Dependent Medicare Dependent Dependent Medicare Dependent D | NAME From: | | | | To: | | | | |
| Dependent not Medicare Dependent Dependen | ☐ E-MAIL ADDRESS 1 | Го: | | | | | | | |
| a copy of your Red, White, and Blue Medicare Card. DROP DEPENDENT COVERAGE Change from Family to Single Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage REASON FOR CANCEL MONTH/DAY/YEAR Death Divorce Dependent no longer eligible Explain: Documentation is required. See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number First Name Initial Last Name Documentation is required. See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number Daughter Stepson Daughter Stepson Stepson Daughter Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Grandson Nephew Niece For additional dependents, please list the information on a separate sheet and attact to this form. TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYER Effective Date of Change: Local Government Unit Name | ☐ Dependent not Med | dicare Dep | endent M | | ☐ Depend | dent not M | edicare | Dependent Medicare | |
| Change from Family to Single Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below to Family Coverage. Add dependent(s)** Add dependent(s) listed below to Family Coverage ** REASON FOR CANCEL MONTH/DAY/YEAR Death Deat | | | | criber (| (Medicare Participant | or 🗵 De | pende | ent Medicare, you must provide | |
| Change from Family to Single Coverage Cancel dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Change from Single to Family Coverage. Add dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage Add dependent(s) listed below from Family Coverage. Add dependent(s) listed below to Family Coverage ** REASON FOR CANCEL MONTH/DAY/YEAR Death Divorce Birth or Adoption of Child Divorce Birth or Adoption of Child Cher Explain: Documentation is required. Sea back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number Husband Wife Date of Birth Social Security Number Stepson Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson | DROP DEPENDENT COVERAGE | | | | | | | | |
| Cancel dependent(s) listed below to Family Coverage ** REASON FOR CANCEL MONTH/DAY/YEAR Death Divorce Dependent no longer eligible Explain: Documentation is required. See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number Stepson Daughter Stepson S | ☐ Change from Family to Single C | overage | | for pre-e | xisting conditions.) **Pleas | e read impo | ortant ir | nformation on the back. | |
| REASON FOR CANCEL MONTH/DAY/YEAR Death Death Dependent no longer eligible Strib or Adoption of Child Other Explain: Dependent no longer eligible Strib or Adoption of Child Other Explain: December of Child Other Explain: See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number Stepson Daughter Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson St | Cancel dependent(s) listed below | w from Family Cove | erage | _ | | | | , , , | |
| Dependent no longer eligible Birth or Adoption of Child Other Explain: Explain | | | | ∐ Ad | d dependent(s) listed belo | w to Famil | y Cove | rage ** | |
| Dependent no longer eligible Styplain: Other: Explain: Documentation is required. See back of form. Place of Birth Social Security Number Place of Birth Place of Birth Social Security Number Place of Birth Place of | ☐ Death _ | MONTH/DAY/YEA | AR — | | | | MON | ITH/DAY/YEAR | |
| Explain: Other | | | | | | | | | |
| Explain: Documentation is required. See back of form. Relationship to Employee | Explain: | | | _ | | _ | | | |
| See back of form. Relationship to Employee Date of Birth Social Security Number | | | | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Husband Wife | First Name Initial | Last Name | | See ba | ack of form. | Date of Bi | rth | Social Security Number | |
| Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepdaughter Step | | | ☐ Husb | and | ☐ Wife | | | • | |
| Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepson Stepdaughter Nephew Niece Niece Niece Stepdaughter Niece Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Niece Stepdaughter | | | _ | son | | | | | |
| Stepson Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepdaughter Stepson Stepson Stepdaughter Stepson | | | | son | | | | | |
| Stepson Stepdaughter | | | | son | | | | | |
| Nephew Niece Grandson Granddaughter Niece September Nephew Niece September Nephew Niece September Nephew Niece September Niece | | | | son | | | | | |
| Nephew Niece | | | | | | | | | |
| TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYER Effective Date of Change: Local Government Unit Name Local Government Unit Name AFFIRMATION AND RELEASE I hereby affirm that I have completely read and fully understand the terms and conditions of this form. I attest that all the representations made by me on this form are true and correct. I understand that any misrepresentation may result in the forfeiture of insurance coverage and that I will be personally liable for all claims related to such misrepresentation. I further understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to release any information necessary to evaluate, and process claims for benefits to | | | | | Niece | | | | |
| Effective Date of Change: Local Government Unit Name I hereby affirm that I have completely read and fully understand the terms and conditions of this form. I attest that all the representations made by me on this form are true and correct. I understand that any misrepresentation may result in the forfeiture of insurance coverage and that I will be personally liable for all claims related to such misrepresentation. I further understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to release any information necessary to evaluate, administer, and process claims for benefits to | | | n a separa | te sheet | | MATION | I AND | DELEASE | |
| this form. I attest that all the representations made by me on this form are true and correct. I understand that any misrepresentation may result in the forfeiture of insurance coverage and that I will be personally liable for all claims related to such misrepresentation. I further understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to release any information necessary to evaluate, administer, and process claims for benefits to | | | | I herel | | | | | |
| understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to release any information necessary to evaluate, administer, and process claims for benefits to | Effective Date of Change: | | | this for | rm. I attest that all the repre | sentations | made b | y me on this form are true and correct. I | |
| any narrow antity or representative acting on the CCID's hehalf | Local Government Unit Name | | | | that I will be personally liable for all claims related to such misrepresentation. I further understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to | | | | |
| | Account Num | ber | | | | | | | |

Signature of Insurance Clerk

Date

Employee Signature

* A "pre-existing medical condition" is any condition, no matter how caused, for which you received medical advice, diagnosis, care or for which treatment was recommended or received during the six months before your coverage began.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Eligible Dependent

The term "dependent" includes the following individuals subject to appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.): (Appropriate documentation must be attached.)

- Your spouse (excludes divorced or common-law spouse).
- 2. A child under age 26, only if the child is:
 - a. your son or daughter.
 - b. a child legally adopted by you or your spouse (including any probationary period during which the child is required to live with you),
 - c. your stepchild,
 - d. your grandchild, niece or nephew for whom the court has granted custody to you or your spouse.

(Exception: children age 19 and older who are eligible for coverage through their employer are not eligible for coverage under LGHIP.)

- 3. An incapacitated dependent over age 25 will be considered for coverage provided dependent:
 - a. is unmarried,
 - b. is permanently mentally or physically disabled or incapacitated,
 - c. is so incapacitated as to be incapable of self-sustaining employment,
 - d. is dependent upon you for 50% or more support.
 - e is otherwise eligible for coverage as a dependent except for age,
 - f. the condition must have occurred prior to the dependent's 26th birthday and
 - g. is not eligible for any other group health insurance benefits.

Neither a reduction in work capacity nor inability to find employment is, of itself, evidence of eligibility. If a mentally or physically disabled dependent is working, despite his disability, the extent of his earning capacity will be evaluated.

To apply, contact the SEIB to obtain an Incapacitated Dependent Certification Form. Final approval of incapacitation will be determined by Medical Review. Proof of disability must be provided to the SEIB within 60 days from the date the child would cease to be covered because of age.

Exception: There are two situations under which it may be possible to add an incapacitated dependent who otherwise meets the eligibility requirements except for age:

- 1. When a new employee requests coverage for an incapacitated dependent within 60 days of employment; or
- When an employee's incapacitated dependent is covered under a spouse's employer group health insurance for at least 18 consecutive months and:
 - a. the employee's spouse loses the other coverage because:
 - · spouse's employer ceases operations, or
 - spouse's loss of eligibility due to termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment, or
 - spouse's employer stopped contribution to coverage,
 - b. a change form is submitted to the SEIB within 30 days of the incapacitated dependent's loss of other coverage, and
 - c. Medical Review approved incapacitation status.

The above requirements must be met as a minimum threshold in order to be considered for incapacitation status. The SEIB shall make the final decision as to whether an application for incapacitated status will be accepted.

NOTE: The SEIB reserves the right to periodically re-certify incapacitation.

Exclusion: You may not cover your wife, husband, or other dependents if they are insured or if they are eligible to be insured as an active employee in the Local Government Health Insurance Program.

WAITING PERIODS

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) provides that if you are covered by another plan before becoming covered by the SEIB, the time you were covered will be credited toward the 270-day waiting period for pre-existing conditions, if:

- 1. There is no greater than a 63-day break in coverage, and
- The last coverage was "creditable coverage," i.e., under an individual or group health plan including COBRA, Medicare, Medicaid,
 U.S. Military, CHAMPUS, Federal Employee Program, Indian Health Service, Peace Corps Service, a state risk pool or a public health
 service.

In order to waive all or a portion of the waiting period for pre-existing conditions, you must submit a Certificate of Creditable Coverage when you enroll.

Effective January 1, 2011, pre-existing waiting period waived for members under the age of 19.

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD
POST OFFICE BOX 304900
MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900
334-263-8326 / 1-866-836-9137 / FAX: 334-517-9778

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 CANCELLATION FORM

SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION

| Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | Sex | Date of Birth | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Social Security Number | Contract Nu | mber | | |
| CANCEL ALL INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE | | | IS: | |
| Voluntary Termination (/_ Last Day in | // Pay Status |) | | |
| Involuntary Termination (/_ Last Day in | // Pay Status |) | | |
| Retirement Date (/ | /) | | | |
| / Military Leave Date (/ | |) Attach m | ilitary papers. | |
| Death (// |) | | | |
| Leave Without Pay - non-payment (| | | _) | |
| Other Date (// |) Give exp | olanation: | | |
| Declination of Coverage. (You MUST | complete and | submit a "De | clination of Coverage" form.) | |
| TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYER | | AFFIRMATI | ON AND RELEASE | |
| Effective Date of Cancellation: | understand | the terms and | have completely read and fully disconditions of this form. I attest | |
| | true and commay result in | rrect. I under n the forfeitur | ns made by me on this form are retained that any misrepresentation e of insurance coverage and that I for all claims related to such | |
| Local Government Unit Name | misrepresen mandatory permission | tation. I fu utilization re to release | orther understand that there is eview and I do hereby give any information necessary to | |
| Account Number | evaluate, administer, and process claims for benefits to any person, entity or representative acting on the SEIB's behalf. | | | |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk Date | Employee S | ignature | Date | |

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 DECLINATION OF COVERAGE FORM

SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION

| Name (First, Middle Initial, L | .ast) | | Sex | Date of B | Birth | |
|--|---|--|-----------------|------------|------------------------|--|
| Social Security Number | al Security Number Contract Number Home Telephone Numb | | | | Work Telephone Number | |
| Mailing Address | | City | | State | Zip Code | |
| Insurance Program. I affirm to My other insurance carr | ier is: | , wish to health insurance coverage* throug | h | | ocal Government Health | |
| NAME OF INSURANCE ADDRESS: | COMPANY: | | | | | |
| CITY: | | S | STATE: | ZIP C | ODE: | |
| TELEPHONE NUMBER: | | I | | | | |
| | ate of creditable coverage or l surance card IS NOT acceptal | etter from employer/insurance c ble as proof of coverage. | arrier verifyin | g coverage | e with the above named | |
| Employee Status: | ull-time Employee | Elected Official | | | | |
| OTICE: | | | | | | |

Under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, the LGHIP must offer a special enrollment period in addition to open enrollment for those employees who experience a qualifying event such as loss of their other employer group coverage or the addition of a dependent. However, since the LGHIP already requires that an employee enroll in the plan when they lose other employer group coverage, special enrollment will only apply to the following qualifying events not related to loss of coverage:

- the addition of a new dependent through birth, adoption or marriage or
- a substantial change in their other employer group coverage or
- a substantial change in the cost of their other employer group coverage.

All employees who lose their other employer group coverage, whether voluntarily or involuntarily must submit an enrollment form to the SEIB with coverage effective as of the date coverage is lost.

To be eligible for special enrollment an employee must submit a declination of coverage form with proof of other employer group coverage. Persons requesting special enrollment must notify the SEIB in writing within 30 days of a qualifying event. Notification should include:

- a. letter requesting participation in the special enrollment;
- b. a completed enrollment form;
- c. Thereafter, the following documentation must be submitted within 60 days of the qualifying event: proof of a qualifying event, listing the reason and date of loss for all individuals affected by loss of coverage; and a Certificate of Creditable Coverage.

| Full-time Date of Hire: | Employee Signature: |
|-------------------------------|---------------------|
| Local Government Unit Name: | |
| Account Number: | Date: |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk: | |

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD **POST OFFICE BOX 304900 MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900** 334.263.8326 / 1.866.836.9137 / FAX: 334.517.9778

LG05 Revised 8/12

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE ELECTION FORM

As a participant in good standing in the Local Government Health Insurance Program, we elect to have coverage for all future eligible full-time employees to be effective on the date of employment for the plan year beginning January 1, 2012.

We understand that this election must be applied uniformly to all new eligible full-time employees.

We further understand that this election is conditional upon approval by the State Employees' Insurance Board and shall remain in effect until such time as the State Employees' Insurance Board may determine otherwise.

| LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT: |
|--|
| EFFECTIVE PLAN YEAR: BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2012 |
| AUTHORIZED AGENT'S NAME AND TITLE (please print) |
| SIGNATURE: |
| DATE OF ELECTION AGREEMENT: |

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD POST OFFICE BOX 304900 MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900 334.263.8326 / 1.866.836.9137 / FAX: 334.517.9778

LG12 Revised 5/2012

State Employees' Insurance Board Local Government Health Insurance Plan Provider Screening Form

Instructions: If you cannot or choose not to participate in SEIB's Worksite Wellness screenings, you may submit your health screening results through your physician. You are to complete Section 1 of the form and your provider is to complete Section 2. The completed form must be returned to SEIB no later than May 31st. NOTE: Incomplete forms will be returned.

| ECTION 1 (To Be Complet Member Name (Please prii | nt) Screen | ing Date | Male Female | | Age: |
|---|-------------------------------|------------------|----------------|----------|---------------------|
| Contract Number | Social Security # | Date of I | Birth | Day Ti | me Phone Number |
| hat best describes your ra | ce/ethnicity? | | | | |
| ☐ White ☐ Bla | ack/African American | ☐ Asiar | 1 | ☐ India | an or Alaska Native |
|] Hispanic/Latino □ Na | tive Hawaiian/Pacific Islande | er 🗌 Other | | | |
| o you have (or have you be | _ | _ | • | that app | oly.) |
| High Cholesterol | ☐ High Blood Pressure | ∐ Diab | | | |
| o you take Medication for a | any of the following? (Mari | k all that apply | y.) | | |
| High Cholesterol | ☐ High Blood Pressure | ☐ Diab | etes | | |
| ECTION 2 (To Be Complete | ed by Provider) | | | | |
| Blood Pressure | | Hei | ght | ft. | in |
| Total Cholesterol | mg/dL | Wei | ght _ | | _ |
| HDL Cholesterol | mg/dL | ВМ | | | |
| LDL Cholesterol | mg/dL | Wai | st Meas | uremer | nt |
| Triglycerides | mg/dL | Wai | st/Ht Ra | itio | |
| Blood Glucose | mg/d | | | | |
| rovider's Name: (Please | . , | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Please return completed form to: STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD P O BOX 304900 MONTGOMERY AL 36130-4900 1.866.838.3059 FAX: 334.517.9980

SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY PLAN Effective January 1, 2012

SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PLANS

Each employee is eligible for coverage through the Southland National Voluntary Plan. Southland offers supplemental dental and vision coverage.

MONTHLY PREMIUMS

| Vision | Dental | COBRA Vision | COBRA Dental |
|---------|---------|--------------|--------------|
| \$20.00 | \$40.00 | \$20.00 | \$41.00 |

ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT RULES

A. Eligible Participants

All participants who are eligible for coverage through the Local Government Health Insurance Program are eligible to participate in the Southland National Voluntary Plan.

B. Eligible Dependents – see page 30.

The same dependent eligibility rules apply to Southland National except that **you may** cover your wife, husband or other dependents if they are insured or if they are eligible to be insured as an active employee in the Local Government Health Insurance Program.

C. Subsequent Enrollment of New Employees

All new hires that elect to participate in the Southland National Voluntary Plan will have coverage effective the first day of the second month following receipt by SEIB of their enrollment form. For example, if a new employee's enrollment form is received by the SEIB in the month of August, the effective date of coverage will be October 1.

NOTE: A minimum enrollment of 12 months is required for employees/dependents. Unless there is a qualifying event (death, divorce or otherwise losing dependent status), participants will be allowed to cancel Southland National Voluntary Plan coverage during the November open enrollment for coverage effective January 1, 2012.

D. Family Coverage Enrollment

New employees may elect to have dependent coverage begin on the date their coverage begins. If dependent coverage is not elected at that time, they may enroll for dependent coverage for the newly acquired dependent, within 60 days of a qualifying event (marriage, birth or adoption). The effective date of coverage will be the first day of the next month after the Southland Change Form is received in the SEIB office.

Before dependents are added to family coverage, the SEIB must receive appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.). If documentation is not received with a Southland Enrollment Form, the SEIB will send

a notice to the employee to submit the documentation within 30 days. If documentation is not received by the SEIB within 60 days, the SEIB has the right to disallow the request to add dependent coverage.

E. Open Enrollment

There shall be an Annual Open Enrollment held in November (for coverage to be effective January 1) of each year to allow active eligible employees not currently participating in the insurance program a chance to enroll.

If an employee wishes to add a dependent or add family coverage to their existing plan during open enrollment, a change form (Form LG08) must be filled out.

Forms shall be completed in November with an effective date of January 1 and received in the SEIB office by November 30. If an employee does not want to make changes during open enrollment, no paperwork is necessary.

F. Cancellation of Dependent/Family Coverage

Employees who enrolled with a January 1, 2011 effective date of coverage: may cancel dependent/ family coverage during Open Enrollment for a January 1, 2012 effective date.

Dropping dependent coverage requires a qualifying event (death, divorce, or otherwise losing dependent status) outside Open Enrollment. Coverage will be cancelled at the end of the month of the qualifying event. The SEIB may require proof of qualifying event.

G. Leave Without Pay/Military Leave

Enrollment in this plan requires a minimum participation of 12 months. If an employee returns to work and did not continue their coverage while on leave without pay or military leave, they will be re-enrolled in the Southland National Voluntary Plan to satisfy the 12-month requirement. The employee may cancel Southland National Voluntary coverage the next Open Enrollment after the 12-month minimum participation has been met.

H. Continuation of Group Health Coverage (COBRA) See page 39.

BILLING PROCEDURES

Payment Notice

Premiums for participation in the Southland National Voluntary Plan will be reflected on the regular billing.

FORMS

A. Enrollments

To enroll, a Southland National Voluntary Plan Enrollment Form (Form LG07 - See Appendix) must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

B. Changes

To add/drop family coverage to an existing contract, a Southland National Voluntary Plan Change Form (Form LG08 - See Appendix) must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

To make changes to the existing plan (name and/or address changes), a change form must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

C. Cancellations

To cancel all coverage, a Southland National Voluntary Plan Cancellation Form (Form LG09 – See Appendix) must be completed and signed by the employee/retiree.

NOTE: All forms must be verified and signed by the designated payroll/personnel officer.

| XI. | SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY PLAN APPENDIX |
|-----|--|
| | |

LG07 Revised 8/12

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 ENROLLMENT FORM SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY INSURANCE

| SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION | | | | | (| CHECK PLAN ELECTED |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-------------------------|--------------|--|---|
| Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | | Se | ex | | |
| | | | | | | Vision (Monthly premium \$20) |
| Social Security Number | | Date | of Birth | | (Monthly premium \$20) | |
| | | | | | | Dental |
| | | | | | | (Monthly premium \$40) |
| Mailing Address | | | | | | No. |
| | | | | | Ш | Vision and Dental (Monthly premium \$60) |
| City | State | | ZIP Co | ode | | (Monthly premium 400) |
| | | | | | | inimum enrollment of 12 |
| Harris Talantana Nama |)A/. I T.I. I. | | | | moi | nths required for employees/ endents without qualifying |
| Home Telephone Number | Work Telephon | ie Number | | | | us change. |
| | | | | | l | |
| | | | | | □ ; | Single Coverage |
| E-mail Address: | | | | | l 🖂 i | Family Coverage |
| | | | | | | (List dependents below.) |
| Employment Status (Check One) | | | | | | |
| Employment status (Glieck Glie) | | | | | | |
| ☐ Full-time Employee ☐ Elected Offici | al Retire | d (Not Medica | re Partici _l | oant) | □ R | etired (Medicare Participant) |
| | Documenta | tion is require | ed. | | | |
| | | ck of form. | | | | |
| First Name Initial Last Name | Relationsh | ip to Employe | ee | Date of E | irth | Social Security Number |
| | ☐ Husband | ☐ Wife | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | Son | ☐ Daughte | | | | |
| | ☐ Stepson | ☐ Stepdau | ghter | | | |
| | ☐ Son | ☐ Daughte | r | | | |
| | ☐ Stepson | ☐ Stepdau | ghter | | | |
| | ☐ Son | ☐ Daughte | r | | | |
| | Stepson | ☐ Stepdau | | | | |
| | Son | ☐ Daughte | r | | | |
| | Stepson | Stepdau | | | | |
| | · _ · | | | | | |
| | ☐ Grandson☐ Nephew | ☐ Grandda | ughter | | | |
| | ☐ IdebileM | ☐ INIECE | | | | |
| | Grandson | Grandda | ughter | | | |
| | ☐ Nephew | ☐ Niece | | | | |
| TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPI | LOYER | | | _ | | ND RELEASE |
| | | | | | | ely read and fully understand s form. I attest that all the |
| Effective Date: | | | | | | is form are true and correct. I |
| | | | | | | entation may result in the |
| | | | | | and that I will be personally h misrepresentation. I further | |
| Local Government Unit Name | understa | nd that t | here is ma | ındato | ry utilization review and I do | |
| | | | | | | any information necessary to |
| | | | | | | s claims for benefits to any ting on the SEIB's behalf. |
| Account Number | | po. 5011, 6 | | -p. 00011101 | | 3 511 4110 0 212 0 00114111 |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk | Date | Employ | ee Signa | iture | | Date |

^{*} A "qualifying event" is birth, marriage, adoption, death, divorce, or otherwise losing dependent status.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Eligible Dependent

The term "dependent" includes the following individuals subject to appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.) (Appropriate documentation must be attached.)

- 1. Your spouse (excludes divorced or common-law spouse).
- 2. A child under age 26, only if the child is:
 - a. your son or daughter,
 - b. a child legally adopted by you or your spouse (including any probationary period during which the child is required to live with you),
 - c. your stepchild,
 - d. your grandchild, niece or nephew for whom the court has granted custody to you or your spouse.

(Exception: children age 19 and older who are eligible for coverage through their employer are not eligible for coverage under LGHIP.)

- 3. An incapacitated dependent over age 25 will be considered for coverage provided dependent:
 - a. is unmarried.
 - b. is permanently mentally or physically disabled or incapacitated,
 - c. is so incapacitated as to be incapable of self-sustaining employment,
 - d. is dependent upon you for 50% or more support,
 - e is otherwise eligible for coverage as a dependent except for age,
 - f. the condition must have occurred prior to the dependent's 26th birthday and
 - q. is not eligible for any other group health insurance benefits.

Neither a reduction in work capacity nor inability to find employment is, of itself, evidence of eligibility. If a mentally or physically disabled dependent is working, despite his disability, the extent of his earning capacity will be evaluated.

To apply, contact the SEIB to obtain an Incapacitated Dependent Certification Form. Final approval of incapacitation will be determined by Medical Review. Proof of disability must be provided to the SEIB within 60 days from the date the child would cease to be covered because of age.

NOTE: The SEIB reserves the right to periodically re-certify incapacitation.

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD
POST OFFICE BOX 304900
MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900
334-263-8326 / 1-866-836-9137 / FAX: 334-517-9778

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM **2012 CHANGE FORM** SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY INSURANCE

| SUE | <u>ssc</u> | R | <u>IBE</u> | R | <u>IN</u> | <u> 1F</u> | <u>O</u> | R | MA | <u>TIC</u> | <u> 10</u> | l |
|-----|------------|---|------------|----|-----------|------------|----------|---|----|------------|------------|---|
| | į | • | | •• | • | | • | • | | | | |

| SOBSCRIBER IN CRIMATI | <u> </u> | | | | Sex | | | |
|--|----------------------------|-----------------|---|--|---------------|---------|-------------------------------|--|
| Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | | | | | Date | of Birth | |
| Social Security Number | Contract Number | | | Home Telephone Numb | er | Work | Telephone Number | |
| Please indicate the Southland Plan t | that you'd like to req | quest a ch | ange fo | r: | | | | |
| ☐ Vis (Enroll | | ☐ f 12 mor | Dental ths req | uired without qualifying | Vision & De | | | |
| CHANGE: MAILING AD | DRESS To: | | | | | | | |
| | | | | To: | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| DROP DEPENDENT COVERAGE Must have a qualifying event to add/drop Open Enrollment.* | dependent coverage o | outside | | TIONS – PROVIDE DOCU | | | age outside Open Enrollment.* | |
| ☐ Change from Family to Single C☐ Cancel dependent(s) listed below | - | erage | ☐ A | hange from Single to Fam dd dependent(s) listed be | low to Family | y Covei | rage ** | |
| | | | | Please read important inf | ormation on | the bac | СК. | |
| Death _ | //ONTH/DAY/YEAR | | _ | ON FOR ADDITION | | MON | ITH/DAY/YEAR | |
| ☐ Divorce☐ Dependent no longer eligible | | | | larriage, date of marriage irth or Adoption of Child | | | | |
| Explain: | | | _ | other: Explain: | | | | |
| Explain: | | | | -xpiaiii | | | | |
| | Documentation is required. | | | | | | | |
| First Name Initial | Last Name | Re | | pack of form. hip to Employee | Date of Bir | rth | Social Security Number | |
| | | ☐ Husl | oand | ☐ Wife | | | | |
| | | ☐ Son ☐ Step | | ☐ Daughter ☐ Stepdaughter | | | | |
| | | ☐ Son ☐ Step | | ☐ Daughter ☐ Stepdaughter | | | | |
| | | ☐ Son ☐ Step | | ☐ Daughter ☐ Stepdaughter | | | | |
| | | ☐ Son ☐ Step | | ☐ Daughter ☐ Stepdaughter | | | | |
| | | ☐ Gran | | ☐ Granddaughter ☐ Niece | | | | |
| ☐ Grandson ☐ Nephew | | | | ☐ Granddaughter ☐ Niece | | | | |
| TO BE COMPLETED | BY EMPLOY | ER | | AFFIRM | IATION A | AND | RELEASE | |
| Effective Date of Change:/ | | | cond are forfe relat utiliz | I hereby affirm that I have completely read and fully understand the terms and conditions of this form. I attest that all the representations made by me on this form are true and correct. I understand that any misrepresentation may result in the forfeiture of insurance coverage and that I will be personally liable for all claims related to such misrepresentation. I further understand that there is mandatory utilization review and I do hereby give permission to release any information necessary to evaluate, administer, and process claims for benefits to any person, | | | | |
| Account Num | ber | | | y, or representative acting | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk | Da | ate | | Employee Signature | | | Date | |

^{*} A "qualifying event" is birth, marriage, adoption, death, divorce, or otherwise losing dependent status.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Eligible Dependent

The term "dependent" includes the following individuals subject to appropriate documentation (Social Security number, marriage certificate, birth certificate, court decree, etc.) (**Appropriate documentation must be attached.**)

- 1. Your spouse (excludes divorced or common-law spouse).
- 2. A child under age 26, only if the child is:
 - a. your son or daughter,
 - b. a child legally adopted by you or your spouse (including any probationary period during which the child is required to live with you),
 - c. your stepchild,
 - d. your grandchild, niece or nephew for whom the court has granted custody to you or your spouse.

(Exception: children age 19 and older who are eligible for coverage through their employer are not eligible for coverage under LGHIP.)

- 3. An incapacitated dependent over age 25 will be considered for coverage provided dependent:
 - a. is unmarried,
 - b. is permanently mentally or physically disabled or incapacitated,
 - c. is so incapacitated as to be incapable of self-sustaining employment,
 - d. is dependent upon you for 50% or more support,
 - e is otherwise eligible for coverage as a dependent except for age,
 - f. the condition must have occurred prior to the dependent's 26th birthday and
 - g. is not eligible for any other group health insurance benefits.

Neither a reduction in work capacity nor inability to find employment is, of itself, evidence of eligibility. If a mentally or physically disabled dependent is working, despite his disability, the extent of his earning capacity will be evaluated.

To apply, contact the SEIB to obtain an Incapacitated Dependent Certification Form. Final approval of incapacitation will be determined by Medical Review. Proof of disability must be provided to the SEIB within 60 days from the date the child would cease to be covered because of age.

NOTE: The SEIB reserves the right to periodically re-certify incapacitation.

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD
POST OFFICE BOX 304900
MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900
334-263-8326 / 1-866-836-9137 / FAX: 334-517-9778

LG09 Revised 8/12

LOCAL GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM 2012 CANCELLATION FORM SOUTHLAND NATIONAL VOLUNTARY INSURANCE OPEN ENROLLMENT

| SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION | | | |
|---|--|--|---|
| Name (First, Middle Initial, Last) | | Sex | Date of Birth |
| Social Security Number | Contract Number | | |
| CANCEL INSURANCE COVERAGE: (Enrollment minimum of 12 months required with | nout qualifying status ch | nange.) | |
| Vision | | | |
| Dental | | | |
| Vision & Dental | | | |
| Termination of Emp | oloyment. You must c | omplete a C | Cancellation Form. |
| | | | |
| TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYER | AFFIRM | MATION AND | RELEASE |
| Effective Date of Cancellation: 01/01/2012 | understand the terms that all the represent true and correct. I un may result in the forf I will be personally | s and conditi tations made nderstand th eiture of insu liable for al | mpletely read and fully ions of this form. I attest by me on this form are at any misrepresentation urance coverage and that I claims related to such nderstand that there is |
| Local Government Unit Name | mandatory utilizatio permission to relea evaluate, administer, | on review a ase any inf , and proces | and I do hereby give formation necessary to see claims for benefits to tive acting on the SEIB's |
| Account Number | behalf. | representat | ive acting on the SEID S |
| Signature of Insurance Clerk Date | Employee Signature | | Date |

STATE EMPLOYEES' INSURANCE BOARD POST OFFICE BOX 304900 MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36130-4900 334.263.8326 / 1.866.836.9137 / FAX: 334.517.9778

^{*} A "qualifying event" is birth, marriage, adoption, death, divorce, or otherwise losing dependent status.